
 

 

 

 
The public and press are welcome to attend. 

 

If you would like any further information or 

have any special requirements in respect of 

this Meeting, please contact Elaine Speed, 

Senior Democratic Services Officer on 01507 

613423 

 

Tel:  (01507) 601111 Ext. 613423 

 

Email: elaine.speed@e-lindsey.gov.uk 
 

Website: www.e-lindsey.gov.uk 

 
 Date: Wednesday, 8 February 2023 

Dear Councillor, 

 
Planning Policy Committee 

 
You are invited to attend a Meeting of the Planning Policy Committee to be held at 
the Hub, Mareham Road, Horncastle, Lincolnshire LN9 6PH on Thursday, 16th 

February, 2023 at 6.00 pm, for the transaction of the business set out in the 
attached Agenda. 

 
The public and the press may access the meeting via the following link 
https://bit.ly/ELDCYT where a livestream and subsequent recording of the meeting 

will be available or by attending the Meeting. 
 

 
 
Yours sincerely 

 

 
 
Robert Barlow 
Chief Executive 

 
Conservative 

Councillors Tom Ashton (Chairman), Sid Dennis (Vice-Chairman), Helen Matthews, 
Will Grover, Thomas Kemp and Daniel McNally 
 

Independent Group 
Councillors Carleen Dickinson and Steve McMillan 

 
Labour 
Councillors Tony Howard and Phyll Smith 

 
Skegness Urban District Society (SUDS) 

Councillor Mark Dannatt 
 

mailto:elaine.speed@e-lindsey.gov.uk
https://bit.ly/ELDCYT


 

 

 

PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE AGENDA 

Thursday, 16 February 2023 

 
Item Subject Page No. 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:   

2. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY):   

3. MINUTES:  1 - 8 

 To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 10 

November 2022. 
 

 

4. ACTIONS:  9 - 10 

 Actions from the last Meeting. 
 

 

5. EAST LINDSEY LOCAL PLAN SETTLEMENT PATTERN:  11 - 18 

 To receive a report. 
 

 

6. DRAFT REPLY TO THE NPPF CONSULTATION 2023:  19 - 34 

 To receive a briefing paper. 
 

 

7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING:   

 The programmed date for the next Meeting of this 
Committee will be 23 March 2023. 

 

 

 



PP 1 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Planning Policy Committee held in in the 
Council Chambers, Tedder Hall, Manby Park, Louth on Thursday, 10th 

November, 2022 at 6.00 pm. 
 

Councillor Tom Ashton (Chairman) 
  

Councillors Mark Dannatt, Carleen Dickinson, Will Grover, Tony Howard, 

Daniel McNally, Phyll Smith, Alex Hall, Terry Aldridge and Neil Jones. 
 

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Simon Milson - Planning Policy and Research Service Manager 

Ann Good - Democratic Services Manager 
Elaine Speed - Democratic Services Officer 

 
17. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE:  

 

It was noted that in accordance with Regulation 13 of the Local 
Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, notice 

had been given that Councillors Alex Hall, Terry Aldridge and Neil Jones 
had been appointed to the Committee in place of Councillors Tom Kemp, 

Steve McMillan and Helen Matthews for this Meeting only. 
 

18. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY):  

 
At this point in the meeting, Members were invited to declare any relevant 

interests.  None were received. 
 

19. MINUTES:  

 
The Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 October 2022 were agreed as a 

correct record. 
 

20. ACTIONS:  

 
The actions were noted as complete or in hand. 

 
21. LOCAL LIST UPDATE:  

 

Members received a briefing paper that provided an update on the 
progress of the Local List project, page 13 of the Agenda refers. 

 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager advised Members that the 
paper contained information to provide an update on the project to create 

a Local List across East Lindsey and Lincolnshire. 
 

Members were informed that to date, there was a high number of 
potential buildings and properties that had been put forward as 
nominations.  The Chairman considered that this highlighted just how 

passionate East Lindsey was about this matter and given that this was a 
Lincolnshire-wide project was very pleased to see that East Lindsey had 

submitted half of the nominations. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Planning Policy Committee 

10.11.2022 
 

PP 2 

 

The Chairman highlighted that when the original Local Plan was being 
written there was a profound gap between the statutory listing process 

which in many cases was particularly onerous for the owners of the 
buildings to do anything with and also building construction that did not 
qualify for Grade 2 or higher listing but still needed a value and protection 

putting on them and he was keen to see this changed.   
 

22. GYPSY/TRAVELLER NEEDS ASSESSMENT (GTNA):  
 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager presented Members with a 

report that provided a summary on the Gypsy/Traveller Needs 
Assessment (GTNA), pages 15 to 22 of the Agenda refer and highlighted 

key information contained within Paragraph 1. 
 
Members were advised that the Policy Team had worked with consultants 

to produce the GTNA and the final draft had now been received and was 
attached at Appendix A, pages 23 to 84 of the Agenda refer. 

 
Members were invited to put their comments and questions forward. 
 

• A Member highlighted that the consultant’s report had identified 
that there was no need for gypsy and traveller sites, Section 7.32, 

Figure 4, page 64 of the Agenda refers and whilst largely based on 
interviews conducted, in relation to the survey of Travelling 

Communities commented that none had been undertaken.  It was 
further highlighted that Paragraph 6.4 referred to interviews with 
gypsies and travellers in bricks and mortar where one household 

had been identified for interview, however this was not reflected in 
the tables and disputed how detailed the survey had been. 

 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager informed Members that 
the data referred to interviews that the consultants had actually 

carried out and in Section 6, Paragraph 6.3, the bottom of Figure 2 
and referred Members to 9 interviews being undertaken with 

travellers and show people, page 57 of the Agenda refers. 
 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager added that there were 

very few of the settled permanent population and the sites detailed 
in the table were for the majority of sites that the Council had 

provided to the consultants. 
 
A Member responded that there was a large population of those 

people who fitted the definition as they had previously travelled but 
no longer did, where some of those in households may wish to go 

back on the road but currently found the transition too difficult. 
 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager advised Members that 

the survey had been undertaken by Opinion Research Services 
(ORS) who carried out many surveys across the country and its 

methodologies had been tested countless times at appeal and 

Page 2



Planning Policy Committee 

10.11.2022 
 

PP 3 

examinations.  However, he was happy to go back to ORS to query 

the methodology behind the survey work that was undertaken, 
although advised that it was a standard approach applied across the 

country. 
 

N.B.  Councillor Will Grover joined the Meeting at 18:17pm. 

 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager requested that if 

Members were aware of any additional sites and population of that 
type within the district to inform him.  Whilst acknowledging that 
gypsies and travellers were a hidden community and it was difficult 

to track them down to open up communication routes there was 
still an opportunity at this stage to feed information into the work. 

 
The Chairman commented that as the work went through its final 
stages he believed that the methodology and everything behind this 

was as robust as it could be.  The conclusions that the report had 
arrived at from ELDC’s perspective in terms of producing and 

delivering a Local Plan was that it could be challenging and 
contentious with communities to deliver further pitches.  
Furthermore, there was a huge cost with delivering sites and the 

site at Burgh Le Marsh was highlighted as an example. 
 

• In relation to Section 7.38, DLUHC Traveller Caravan Count, page 
66 of the Agenda refers, a Member highlighted that data showed 

that there had been no unauthorised caravans recorded on land not 
owned by travellers in recent years and asked what period of time 
this referred to.   

 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager informed Members that 

the Annual National Survey was undertaken bi-annually by Planning 
Policy Officers who visited and surveyed sites to see whether any 
caravans were on a site or whether there were any unauthorised 

encampments, rather than undertaking interviews.  It was however, 
acknowledged that this was a snapshot in time and as such, the 

findings on that one day had to be reported which may not show 
the true picture. 

 

• A Member commented that he was not happy with the findings in 
the report and queried whether there could be a cross check with 

information from the Census to see whether the figures were 
correct.  It was further considered that if there were no allocated 
sites, then there would be no people available to interview.  

 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager responded that 

Paragraph 3.22 of the report stated that the 2011 Census recorded 
just 24 households that identified as either Gypsies or Irish 
Travellers who lived in a house or bungalow in East Lindsey and two 

who lived in a flat or maisonette, page 41 of the Agenda refers.  
This was part of the methodology used by ORS and reiterated that 

it was making contact and engaging in open dialogue that was 

Page 3



Planning Policy Committee 

10.11.2022 
 

PP 4 

difficult.  Members were advised that data from the 2021 Census 

was published but not available down to that level of detail and 
before information was fed into the Local Plan review ORS would be 

asked to undertake a refresh of the data in case there were any 
changes. 
 

• A Member highlighted the term ‘negotiated stopping’, detailed at 
Paragraph 7.47, page 67 of the Agenda refers for the agreed short-

term provision for gypsy and traveller caravans and queried where 
these sites were located in East Lindsey.  It was highlighted that 
Queens Park Car Park, Seacroft Bus Park in Mablethorpe and 

Furlongs Field in Sutton on Sea were not regarded as negotiated 
stopping sites, however people did turn up and stop on these sites 

and prior to Covid there were five separate occasions when a 
considerable number of people pitched up on these non-negotiated 
sites.  It was considered that a number of appropriate sites with 

appropriate amenities would reduce future problems. 
 

The Planning Policy and Research Manger advised Members that to 
provide negotiated stopping places was a proposal in the report and 
was not something that was currently in place to accommodate the 

transit population.  It was highlighted that there was already a 
permanent gypsy and traveller population in the district and the 

transit travellers would still pass through even if there were no sites 
available and the policy team strived to capture the information, 

however it was never going to be a perfect science. 
 
Members were advised that in relation to the transit population the 

report recommended to have a joined-up approach with 
Lincolnshire County Council working closely with its Enforcement 

and Licensing Teams to assess patterns of travel across the district 
and this would feed in to how the Council monitored and enforced 
this moving forward.  

 
• The Chairman queried whether a view on the assessment had been 

received from the Gypsy and Traveller Liaison Service.  The 
Planning Policy and Research Manager responded that no direct 
response had been received and there was no direct letter of 

endorsement, however engagement had been made throughout the 
process for the creation of the report from both officers and the 

consultants.  Following which, the Chairman requested that the final 
copy of the ELDC Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment 
Report be forwarded to the Gypsy and Traveller Liaison Service for 

comment. 
 

• A Member queried whether the Mablethorpe Ward Member had in 
mind any sites to put forward, following which the Ward Member 
queried why the Gypsy Council were not being asked directly for 

information as it would be able to find people to put forward.  The 
Planning Policy and Research Manger advised that as any 

stakeholder, the Gypsy Council would have been consulted during 

Page 4



Planning Policy Committee 

10.11.2022 
 

PP 5 

the process and ORS were involved with many organisations and 

bodies that represented the different gypsies, travellers and show 
people communities.  The Planning Policy and Research Manager 

added that he was comfortable with the tendering process that was 
undertaken and assured Members that ORS had experience and 
expertise to be awarded the contract. 

 
No further comments or questions were received. 

 
Following which, it was 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the Gypsy, Traveller Needs Assessment be noted by Members as 
forming part of the evidence base for the Local Plan review. 
 

23. AUTHORITY MONITORING REPORT 2021-2022:  
 

The Planning Policy and Research Manager presented Members with a 
report in relation to the Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) 2021-22, 
pages 85 to 92 of the Agenda refer.  A copy of the AMR report was 

attached at Appendix A, pages 93 to 210 of the Agenda refer. 
 

Members were advised that the Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 required 
Local Authorities to publish an Authority Monitoring Report (AMR) on an 

annual basis.  The Local Planning Regulations 2012 set out various items 
of information that should be included in an AMR.   
 

The AMR covered the period March 2021 to February 2022 and contained 
an update of the position of the Council in relation to various national 

indicators, including employment, wages and house prices.  It also 
included a suite of monitoring indicators designed to show how the Local 
Plan policies were performing.  The AMR was in final draft form and 

subject to only design and formatting changes and the information 
mentioned below. 

 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager referred Members to Paragraph 
3.6, page 88 of the Agenda refers that reported there had been a delay in 

securing data for affordable housing to enter into the AMR.  As this data 
was still not available, the Planning Policy and Research Manager asked 

with Members’ agreement that authority be delegated to the Chairman of 
Planning Policy Committee to allow the information to be inserted into the 
AMR once confirmed. 

 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager also then highlighted to 

Members that there were several pieces of information not contained 
within the report presented as follows: 
 

• With regards to the section that looked at the number of 
applications approved at Committee contrary to officer 

Page 5



Planning Policy Committee 

10.11.2022 
 

PP 6 

recommendation there was a total of 6, an increase of 3 from the 

previous year and a decrease from the year before that. 
 

• In relation to S106 Agreements, the Council entered into 17 new 
agreements in the reporting period which achieved a total of 
£1.994m against 286 affordable housing units delivered under the 

terms of those agreements. 
 

• With regards to expenditure, a total of £787k had been received 
and £27k spent. 
 

This information would be included in the final copy of the AMR, together 
with the affordable housing data. 

 
Members were invited to put their comments and questions forward. 
 

• A Member referred to the Table relating to employment land 
vacancy rates at Paragraph 7.24, page 122 of the Agenda refers.  A 

query was raised why there was a considerable variation in the 
numbers reported and provided Louth and North Somercotes as an 
example.  The Planning Policy and Research Manager advised 

Members that he was unable to account for the variation for North 
Somercotes and would take this away and provide a response after 

the meeting. 
 

With regards to Louth, it was highlighted that the industrial estate 
was a large site, had a lot of variation on it and a 10% vacancy rate 
with a higher turnover in the smaller units and starter units for 

small businesses.  The Planning Policy and Research Manager 
advised Members that he would check all of the figures in the table 

referred for accuracy. 
 

• A Member commented that he had asked for clarification on the 

extension to the industrial estate at the previous meeting, however 
was provided with a plan with what land was currently available.  It 

was queried whether the extension referred to was under the 
Council’s ownership or whether it was run by the Lincolnshire 
Enterprise Partnership, for example.   

 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager advised Members that 

his understanding was that the plan outlined land to the north in 
red as part of the Council’s ownership where basic services and 
facilities had been put in prior to being sold or rented, depending on 

what business model the Council wished to use, however was not 
aware there had been any progress on this land to date.  A Member 

thanked the Planning Policy and Research Manager for the 
information and asked whether further information could be 
provided for the northern part of the site. 

 

Page 6



Planning Policy Committee 

10.11.2022 
 

PP 7 

• A Member asked for clarification on the coastal commitments, in 

particular for affordable housing that had been delivered and how 
many was allocated to market housing. 

 
• A Member referred to the affordable dwellings completion and 

whilst acknowledging that the data referred to the period 2011 to 

2019 asked for clarification as to what was classed as an affordable 
dwelling, for example whether it included shared ownership, 

discounted housing or social rented properties. 
 
The Planning Policy and Research Manager advised Members that 

the affordable housing figures were broken down to distinguish the 
coastal housing and affordable coastal housing.  With regards to the 

type of an affordable dwelling, this should include anything that was 
affordable from a planning point of view.  The data for this was 
provided by the Council’s Housing Team.  A Member commented 

that he would be interested to see whether the discounted first-
time buyers housing had started to take over social rented housing, 

following which the Planning Policy and Research Manager advised 
Members that he hoped to be able to achieve more of a breakdown. 
 

• A Member referred to Paragraph 7.12, Table ‘Employee Jobs in East 
Lindsey’, pages 118 to 119 of the Agenda refer which included 

meaningful face emojis, however could not understand why they 
had been included in Paragraph 9 ‘Significant Effects/Contextual 

Indicators, pages 130 to 139 of the Agenda refers.  The Planning 
Policy and Research Manager explained that these were also 
indicators with a target and baseline and were included to provide a 

visual indicator as to whether the data was better, worse or the 
same, however was happy to delete them if Members considered 

they brought nothing meaningful to the report. 
 
No further comments or questions were received. 

 
In conclusion, the Chairman considered that due to the difficult times over 

the last couple of years, East Lindsey was a good place to work and live.  
Rents, including market rents were still favourable compared to other 
parts of Lincolnshire and across the country and the Council continued to 

see houses delivered and were meeting set housing targets.  There was 
also a continued increase in employment in tourism and revenue. 

 
In terms of the six planning applications that Planning Committee 
approved against officer recommendation, the Chairman added that he 

was completely relaxed with decisions made by the Committee and the 
Council had not lost an appeal on a major application in the last six to 

seven years. 
 
The Chairman advised Members that once the affordable housing data had 

been entered into the AMR he would ensure that this was circulated to all 
Members. 

 

Page 7



Planning Policy Committee 

10.11.2022 
 

PP 8 

Following which, it was 

 
RESOLVED: 

 
• That authority be delegated to the Chairman of Planning Policy 

Committee to allow the affordable housing data to be inserted into 

the AMR once confirmed. 
 

• That the contents of the Authority Monitoring Report 2021-2022 be 
noted. 

 

24. DATE OF NEXT MEETING:  
 

The date of the next Meeting was confirmed as Thursday 5 January 2023 
commencing at 6.00pm. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 7.06 pm. 

 
 
 

 

Page 8



1 
 

ACTIONS FROM THE PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING 

HELD ON THURSDAY 10 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

1. MIN 
N0: 

ITEM: ACTIONED BY: 

2. 19. MINUTES:  

 
3.  

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 October 2022 were 

agreed as a correct record. 

NOTED 

20.  ACTIONS:  

 The actions were noted as complete or in hand. NOTED 

21. 14. LOCAL LIST UPDATE:   

 
 

RESOLVED: 

 
• That the briefing paper be noted. 

NOTED 

22. 15. GYPSY/TRAVELLER NEEDS ASSESSMENT (GTNA):  

 
* 

(a) Following a number of concerns raised by Members, 
the Planning Policy and Research Manager to go back to 

ORS to query the methodology behind the survey work 
that was undertaken. UPDATE 08/02/2023: SM 

currently querying with consultants before final 
report issued. 

SIMON MILSON 

 
* 

(b) The final copy of the ELDC Gypsy and Traveller 
Accommodation Assessment Report to be forwarded to the 
Gypsy and Traveller Liaison Service for comment. 

UPDATE 08/02/2023: This will be actioned once 
final copy received. 

SIMON MILSON 

 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

• That the Gypsy, Traveller Needs Assessment be 
noted by Members as forming part of the evidence 
base for the Local Plan review. 

NOTED 

23. 22. AUTHORITY MONITORING REPORT 2021-2022:   

 23. Table relating to employment land vacancy rates, 
Paragraph 7.24, page 122 of the Agenda refers.   

 

 
* 
24. (a) The Planning Policy and Research Manager to revisit 

the figures relating to the variation in numbers for Louth 
and North Somercotes to check for accuracy and provide a 

response after the meeting. UPDATE 08/02/2023: This 
is in hand update at March 2023 Committee. 

SIMON MILSON 

 
* 

(b) The Planning Policy and Research Manager to provide 
further information for the northern part of the site on 

Louth Industrial Estate. UPDATE 08/02/2023: This is 
in hand update at March 2023 Committee. 

SIMON MILSON 

 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

• That authority be delegated to the Chairman of 

Planning Policy Committee to allow the affordable 
housing data to be inserted into the AMR once 

confirmed. 
 

• That the contents of the Authority Monitoring Report 

2021-2022 be noted. 

NOTED 

24. 16. DATE OF NEXT MEETING:   

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



2 
 

 
 

The date of the next Meeting was confirmed as Thursday 
5 January 2023 commencing at 6.00pm. 
 

NOTED 

 ACTIONS FROM THE PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE 
MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY 29 OCTOBER 2020 

 

4. 22. 25. BRIEFING PAPER ON THE RETAIL ASSESSMENTS:   

5. * 26. The final report following the Retail Assessment to come 

back to Committee. UPDATE 18/10/21: Still awaiting final 
report. UPDATE 07/02/2022: – Still awaiting final report 
due to this being updated with the latest national data. 

UPDATE 04/10/2022:  The Planning Policy and Research 
Manager has advised that this is currently pending. 

UPDATE 08/02/2023: Final report has now been 
received but not in time for February meeting, the 
aim is for it to be presented at March Committee. 

SIMON MILSON 

AUTUMN 2022 

 

Page 10



 

 
 

 

REPORT TO: Planning Policy Committee 

DATE: 16th February 2023 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

East Lindsey Local Plan Settlement Pattern 

 

To provide an update on the discussions at the meeting of this 

Committee on 17th February 2022 and to agree the methodology 

for the Settlement Pattern in the Local Plan. 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Tom Ashton 

REPORT AUTHOR: Kay Turton 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: The Settlement Pattern will affect all wards. 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

A Member Workshop was held on 2nd November 2021 to review the services and facilities to be 

included in the methodology to establish the Settlement Pattern of the East Lindsey Local Plan, 

along with the points awarded. Members will recall receiving a report to the 17th February 2022 

meeting of this committee setting out the changes that the Member Workshop had proposed. 

However, there were some outstanding issues to be resolved, particularly in relation to how 

points were awarded for employment. 

The recommended methodology is to now calculate the employment points in the same way as 

they were for the current plan, but with a higher payment threshold for those business which 

would count towards the points, to reflect their employment potential. The information used to 

establish the strategic road network points has changed and can no longer be relied on so it is 

recommended that this element is removed from the scoring criteria. In the light of the changes, 

the thresholds between the different tiers in the Settlement Pattern have also been 

recalculated, based on the list of services and facilities previously used to determine where the 

thresholds lay. 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the changes to the East Lindsey Local Plan Settlement Pattern methodology, set out in 

paragraphs 2.6 – 2.10 of this, report be supported. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

The proposed changes represent the most robust, objective method for assessing the East 

Lindsey Local Plan Settlement Pattern 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Other options for assessing the employment element of the Settlement Pattern were 

considered at the meeting of this Committee on 17th February 2022. 

Consider basing the Strategic Road Network on A and B roads. 

Do nothing – continue to use the existing methodology used to create the current settlement 

pattern 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1. A key element of the East Lindsey Local Plan (ELLP) is a Settlement Pattern categorising 

villages as either Large Villages, Medium Villages or Small Villages. This underpins the 

growth strategy for the district. This is based on a points system reflecting the level of 

services and facilities in these communities. As part of the review of the ELLP the 

methodology behind this, what scores points and how many points, is being refreshed. 

 

1.2. A Member Workshop was held on the 2nd November 2021 to look at this in detail and 

the recommendations of the Workshop were reported to Planning Policy Committee at 

its meeting on 17th February 2022. However, there were some outstanding issues, 

primarily how the points for employment were determined. This report seeks to 

conclude the review of the Settlement Pattern methodology. 

 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1. A Member Workshop was held on 2nd November 2021 to review the services and 

facilities, and points awarded, to be included in the methodology which establishes the 

Settlement Pattern of the Local Plan. Members will recall receiving a report to the 17th 

February 2022 meeting of this committee setting out the changes that the Member 

Workshop had proposed. 

 

2.2. It was agreed to: 

 • combine the Commuter and Shopper Bus services and award 4pts for a once a day 

scheduled service, where this allows enough time to do business in a town. 

• join the Little and Great Carlton’s together, now that a segregated footpath has been 

installed. 

Page 12



• increase Doctor points from 2 points to 4 points 

• add a Pharmacy to the list for 4 points 

• add Public Electric Vehicle Charging Point to the list alongside Petrol Filling Stations 

and award the same points (i.e. 2 points) 

• delete Vets 

2.3. At the workshop, Members had also discussed alternative options for scoring for 

employment in settlements. One of the reasons for this was that the data behind the 

points previously awarded for Large Employer is no longer available. Several suggestions 

were made to find a way of encapsulating both the range of employment in a settlement 

and the number of potential employees in a business, however no conclusion was 

reached at the Workshop. 

2.4. The various scenarios suggested at the Workshop were tested and presented to the 17th 

February 2022 meeting of this Committee. There was discussion about the scenarios, 

and possible alternatives, but no conclusion was reached. 

2.5. Officers have continued to look at this issue, and potential data, and have concluded that 

the only reliable source of data is that for the non-domestic rates collected by the 

Council; although this does not concern itself with the number of people employed. 

Looking at the types of business paying higher levels of non-domestic rates, there is 

potential for a loose correlation between those businesses and the number of 

employees, albeit that this will vary from sector to sector. The recommended 

methodology is to now calculate the employment points as they were for the current 

plan, but with a higher payment threshold for those business which would count 

towards the points. This is a variation of one of the suggestions put forward at the 

Member Workshop and the February meeting. 

2.6. The previous methodology included all businesses paying over £1k, but this draws in 

many business premises that are unlikely to employ people, or at least have very few 

employees. One suggestion was that the methodology be adjusted so that only 

businesses paying over £10k are factored in, to reflect the size and employment 

potential of these businesses. After a broad look at the types of businesses this would 

cover, it was agreed that this would broadly represent the larger employers in the 

District. A few large employer (such as schools, public houses) just fall below this 

threshold but their presence is already recognised through them scoring as a community 

facility. Infrastructure projects, such as telecommunications and sewage treatment 

works, that pay over £10k and don’t employ anyone on site have been removed from the 

assessment. 

2.7. The employment points have always sought to establish the presence of a range of 

business types, to provide choice of employment and accommodate different skills 

within a community. Therefore, as with the previous pattern, businesses have been 

divided into 8 categories and to score the Employment points, there have to be 5 or 

more categories of qualifying businesses present. 

2.8. Another issue/change in the background data used has come to light , this time in 

relation to the Strategic Road Network. Previously, Lincolnshire County Council’s gritting 

routes were used to establish this. However, in recent years this has become much more 

extensive, to the benefit of many more communities in the District. Because of this, 

using this data to establish the Strategic Road Network would include many more 
Page 13



settlements scoring, and this means that it no longer provides sufficient differentiation 

between settlements for assessing the Settlement Pattern. In  light of this, and with no 

clear rationale for keeping this part of the scoring in, it is recommended that the 

Strategic Road Network element of the scoring is removed from the criteria. 

2.9. The final issue to consider, after the changes that have been made above, is if there is a 

need to change the thresholds between the different tiers in the Settlement Pattern. The 

original methodology listed the facilities that would be needed to qualify for each of the 

categories. These were: 

 Large Village – points equivalent to a food shop; a primary school; employment; a public 

house; a post office; a village hall; a playing field; a commuter bus service; 2 non-food 

shops; a place of worship; mains drainage and being on the Strategic Road Network 

(strategic road network was removed from the calculation and there is no longer a 

differentiation between types of bus service). 

 Medium Village – points equivalent to a food shop; a public house; a post office; a village 

hall; a recreation facility (playing field or children’s play area); a shopper bus service and 

mains drainage (there is no longer a differentiation between types of bus service). 

 Small Village – points equivalent to a place of worship; a village hall; a pub and a sports 

club. 

2.10.  These have been recalculated, to establish revised thresholds, based on the points 

awarded to different services and facilities in the revised methodology. This has led to a 

reduction of 4 points in the threshold between Large and Medium villages (due to the 

Strategic Road Network being removed), an increase of 1 point between Medium and 

Small Villages, and no change to the points threshold between Small Villages and 

Hamlets. 

2.11. The Settlement Pattern has been redrawn, taking into account all the changes made – 

from the Member Workshop, the revisions to the methodology behind the Employment 

Points, the removal of the Strategic Road Network from the scoring, the reassessment of 

the thresholds between the tiers and the changes to services and facilities over time on 

the ground. The settlement pattern would change as follows: 

  2018 Local Plan Settlement 
Pattern 

Revised Settlement Pattern 

Large Villages 24 22 

Medium Villages 39 19 

Small Villages 38 46 
 Table 1 

2.12. The table shows that this had led to a reduction in the number of Large and Medium 

Villages, and an increase in Small Village – there has been a commensurate increase in 

the number of Hamlets; although these are not listed in the Planas the term covers any 

named group of dwellings smaller than a Small Village. There has been some movement 

between the tiers, with some settlements moving to the tier above and some moving to 

the tier below, so the reduction in numbers is not simply a case of villages moving to the 

tier below. 

2.13. This would represent a significant reduction in the number of Medium Villages in the 

Plan. However, it should be considered that Members have previously expressed a wish 
Page 14



to see a greater proportion of growth in the Medium Villages, and the ones now included 

in that category represent settlements with a wider range of services to support such 

growth. Many of the villages that would become Small Villages under this methodology 

do not contain a large number of dwellings and have few facilities with which to support 

a significantly growing population. 

 

3. CONCLUSION 

 

3.1. There are many ways for how the employment points in the Settlement Pattern 

methodology could be assessed, including different levels of non-domestic rates payments 

and different ways of considering the range of employment in a settlement. However 

following detailed assessment of these, it is considered that the approach set out in 

paragraphs 2.6 and 2.7 represent the most appropriate method to encapsulate both the 

employment potential and the range of businesses in a community. 

 

3.2. Different methods of establishing a strategic road network could be considered. However, 

most settlements are not a long drive time from major routes through the district and it is 

considered that inclusion of this does not bring significant benefits in term of assessing the 

District’s settlements in terms of growth. 

 

3.3. The final aspect of the report is the recalculation of the threshold between the tiers in the 

Settlement Pattern. It is considered that the lists in paragraph 2.9 are still representative of 

the level of services to be expected in each tier of the Settlement Pattern and the 

points/thresholds have been recalculated accordingly. 

 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

The Local Plan assists the Partnership in all its priorities. 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

No direct implications. The outcome of the report will inform the review of the East Lindsey Local 

Plan. 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

The Local Plan assists the Partnership in all its priorities. 

STAFFING 

None 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)(England) Regulations 2012 

DATA PROTECTION 
Page 15



None 

 

FINANCIAL 

None 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

Any risks have been highlighted and  

 
STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

None prior to committee. 

REPUTATION 

None 

CONTRACTS 

None 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

None 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

None 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

None 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

The outcome of the report will affect the distribution of development and so potential future travel 

patterns across the district 

ACRONYMS 

None 

 

APPENDICES 

None 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report.’   

 

 
Page 16



CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Name of body Date 

Planning Policy Committee 17th February 2022 

  

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Kay Turton (ELDC) 

Signed off by: Simon Milson (ELDC) 

Approved for publication: Councillor Tom Ashton (ELDC) 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



This page is left intentionally blank

Page 18



DRAFT reply to the NPPF consultation 2023 

 

Table of questions 

1            Do you agree that local planning authorities should not have to 
continually demonstrate a deliverable 5-year housing land supply (5YHLS) as 
long as the housing requirement set out in its strategic policies is less than 5 
years old? 

Yes. The proposed changes will reduce the pressure placed upon 
local authorities and free up valuable time and resources. 

2 Do you agree that buffers should not be required as part of 5YHLS 
calculations (this includes the 20% buffer as applied by the Housing Delivery 
Test)? 

Yes. Simplification and the removal of a source of debate at 
examination is welcomed. 

3 Should an oversupply of homes early in a plan period be taken into 
consideration when calculating a 5YHLS later on or is there an alternative 
approach that is preferable? 

Yes. The proposed changes are a common-sense approach for 
dealing with housing supply. There are times of high development 
and low development, and the proposed alteration allows 
authorities to reap the rewards of boom periods and protects them 
against sudden decreases in supply. 
We are however, puzzled as our calculations do this already 
because they list each year’s completions against annual need and 
the total fluctuates as each year produces a surplus or deficit for 
that year. This total is then compared to expected supply to 
determine if a 5YHLS exists. 

4 What should any planning guidance dealing with oversupply and 
undersupply say? 

Any policy must include, in the simplest words, the fact that 
historic undersupply or oversupply of housing within a plan area 
should be considered when evaluating the 5YHLS and incorporated 
into any calculations. It must highlight that this ensures the housing 
requirements of communities are met. 

5 Do you have any views about the potential changes to paragraph 14 
of the existing Framework and increasing the protection given to 
neighbourhood plans? 

We support the proposals as it helps ensure local wishes, expressed 
through the NP, are protected. An NP can take a huge amount of 
community resources to produce, and equally many are needed to 
keep up-to-date. The work involved should be recognised and 
protected. 

Page 19

A
genda Item

 6



6 Do you agree that the opening chapters of the Framework should be 
revised to be clearer about the importance of planning for the homes and 
other development our communities need? 

Yes. The proposed addition of the phrase “in a sustainable manner” 
to Paragraph 1 is an important and beneficial change, reinforcing 
the position of sustainability at the heart of planning policy. 
Naturally, stressing the importance of planning for the homes and 
services of communities is correct and should be done. However, 
the need for these developments to be sustainable is equally 
essential.  
Emphasis should also be placed on maintaining and strengthening 
existing local services. These services preserve the local sense of 
character and provide valuable resources to communities, 
particularly in rural location. National policy should reinforce this 
need for preservation rather than solely focussing on new 
developments and over-emphasising housing.  

7 What are your views on the implications these changes may have on 
plan-making and housing supply? 

The additional considerations regarding historic over delivery of 
housing are a welcome alteration to the housing supply calculation, 
ensuring that the needs of residents are met and reducing the 
potential detrimental impacts of development. Authorities should 
not be punished for taking advantage of growth in the housing 
market and over-delivering on targets while they can. This will also 
allow authorities to over-deliver in order to protect themselves 
against recessions and a sudden decrease in the rate of 
development. 
The changes to urban housing supply that prevent urban centres 
exporting housing to surrounding areas ensures that developments 
take full advantage of urban infrastructure and increases the 
sustainability of these urban centres. Development on brownfield 
sites needs to be incentivised to an even greater extent. Where it is 
in keeping with the area, there is the potential for higher-density 
development, with an increased emphasis on vertical growth. This 
maximises the efficiency of development and increases the 
sustainability of new housing. 
The strengthening of neighbourhood plans is also a welcome 
change.  

Page 20



The housing delivery test should give more weight to the number 
of housing developments approved rather just focussing on net 
homes delivered and homes required. The current system means 
authorities can be punished for developer behaviour even if the 
planning authority is acting proactively and approving the correct 
number of homes. The timeframe of the test should also be 
expanded. Three years is a relatively short time frame that does 
not fully reflect historic over/ under performance or the time it 
takes to complete construction.  
Footnote 44 would benefit with some clarification. This appears to 
be saying the annual requirement provided in a Local Plan, should 
be replaced with that calculated using the standard method when 
calculating the 5YHLS. That does not seem to be consistent with the 
wish to support a plan led system but on an England wide basis it 
would result in a consistent calculation. 

8 Do you agree that policy and guidance should be clearer on what may 
constitute an exceptional circumstance for the use of an alternative approach 
for assessing local housing needs? Are there other issues we should consider 
alongside those set out above? 

Yes. Policy and guidance should be clear on what constitutes 
exceptional circumstances. It is impossible to create a list that 
covers every exception, so there should be reasonable provisions 
for unforeseen exceptional circumstances to be considered in local 
housing needs.  
The demographics of an area should be considered when 
calculating housing need. The two discussed (university students 
and elderly residents) should both be considered. Where there is a 
high proportion of residents within these demographics, emphasis 
should be placed on providing specialist housing. This would reduce 
student’s impacts on rent prices (i.e., without adequate specialist 
accommodation, students will be forced to rent in town, increasing 
demand for accommodation and rent prices) and improve the 
quality of life of elderly residents.  
Geographic and historic factors should also be weighted into the 
decision. Naturally islands have a limited supply of space, limiting 
development and, therefore, preventing the authority from 
achieving its housing need. Mountainous/ hilly regions may 

Page 21



similarly struggle to sustainably develop new housing. Sparsely 
developed areas will also be harmed by significant development. 
The character of the area will be harmed and over-development in 
rural towns and villages leads to sub-optimum conditions for the 
current residents and potential future occupants. There is often 
conflict created as a result of the intensive development between 
existing and new residents, and between the planning authority 
and the communities they serve. 
However, to meet the Government’s housing target will result in 
impact that changes character somewhere. 

9 Do you agree that national policy should make clear that Green Belt 
does not need to be reviewed or altered when making plans, that building at 
densities significantly out of character with an existing area may be 
considered in assessing whether housing need can be met, and that past 
over-supply may be taken into account? 

Yes. Amending Green Belt boundaries is a local matter. Policy 
needs to recognise the importance of the character and sense of 
place of an area and should preserve this. Therefore, weight should 
be given to this in order to prevent high density development that 
would damage the character of an area. Similarly, development 
that is of significantly lower density than its surrounding location 
should equally be prevented as this will add development pressure 
elsewhere, with possibly greater impact. Again these provisos, may 
undermine the Governments housing target. 
Past over supply needs to be very clearly expressed so there is no 
confusion with footnote 49  

10 Do you have views on what evidence local planning authorities should 
be expected to provide when making the case that need could only be met by 
building at densities significantly out of character with the existing area? 

Guidance needs to define ‘area’. Is it the local planning authority or 
more local? It also needs to say how the density calculation is 
made? Does it include land used for roads, open space, school 
grounds etc? The amount of vacant brownfield land, the amount of 
none green belt open land and the constraints they have on 
development. 

11 Do you agree with removing the explicit requirement for plans to be 
‘justified’, on the basis of delivering a more proportionate approach to 
examination? 

Yes. A more proportionate approach will simplify the examination 
process and if the Government’s aim is each local plan is refreshed 
every 5 years they will be sufficiently up to date to reduce the 
rigour of ’justified’. 

Page 22



12 Do you agree with our proposal to not apply revised tests of 
soundness to plans at more advanced stages of preparation? If no, which if 
any, plans should the revised tests apply to? 

Yes, otherwise it undermines the desire for complete and up to 
date local plan coverage as soon as possible. 

13 Do you agree that we should make a change to the Framework on the 
application of the urban uplift? 

Yes. The 35% uplift should remain in place and should be applied 
where possible. If there is a lack of brownfield land or if the 
increase in density would significantly conflict with the character of 
the area, then the uplift may have to be relaxed. However, 
exporting homes to surrounding authorities may raise similar issues 
and undermine the Government’s housing target. 

14 What, if any, additional policy or guidance could the department 
provide which could help support authorities plan for more homes in urban 
areas where the uplift applies? 

There is the potential to introduce policy that states that although 
the uplift applies and the housing needs of the area is great, that 
developments must still meet the sustainable development targets 
and achieve the standard of beauty that has been emphasised in 
these policy reforms. It should also be reiterated that development 
that is significantly out of keeping with the area should not be 
approved regardless of the housing need. This could be because of 
a proposed density significantly above the existing density or a 
poorly designed proposal that does reflect the density but is out of 
character in other ways. This ensures high quality development and 
prevents the uplift being abused by developers. 

15 How, if at all, should neighbouring authorities consider the urban 
uplift applying, where part of those neighbouring authorities also functions as 
part of the wider economic, transport or housing market for the core 
town/city? 

Neighbouring urban authorities will already be integrated into the 
economy of the core and are fundamentally linked with the core. 
Therefore, the housing needs of the core should be reflected onto 
these semi-peripheral regions. There is the potential, through 
strategic partnerships and cooperation, for these neighbouring 
authorities to receive a proportion of the core’s housing 
requirements. This will ensure adequate competition and that the 
most optimum sites are selected. It also prevents poor quality 
developments being approved in the core simply to meet the 35% 
uplift target. 

16 Do you agree with the proposed 4-year rolling land supply 
requirement for emerging plans, where work is needed to revise the plan to 

Yes. The proposal allows for authorities to adapt more easily to the 
proposed changes and reduces the potential for delays via plans 
being rewritten. 

Page 23



take account of revised national policy on addressing constraints and 
reflecting any past over-supply? If no, what approach should be taken, if any? 

 

17 Do you consider that the additional guidance on constraints should 
apply to plans continuing to be prepared under the transitional arrangements 
set out in the existing Framework paragraph 220? 

No. The policies referenced are now greatly outdated. 
 

18 Do you support adding an additional permissions-based test that will 
‘switch off’ the application of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development where an authority can demonstrate sufficient permissions to 
meet its housing requirement? 

Yes. The current system can potentially punish planning authorities 
for the behaviour of developers. The system should acknowledge 
where planning authorities have acted proactively and have 
granted the necessary permissions to achieve the housing supply. 
There should also be policy to prevent authorities being punished 
where failure to meet the housing supply is due to a lack of suitable 
applications e.g. as a result of an economic downturn. 

19 Do you consider that the 115% ‘switch-off’ figure (required to turn off 
the presumption in favour of sustainable development Housing Delivery Test 
consequence) is appropriate? 

Yes. Our local plan inspector applied a 10% lapse rate and so this 
rate is more rigorous, but is considered reasonable.  

20 Do you have views on a robust method for counting deliverable 
homes permissioned for these purposes? 

The figure can be derived from the monitoring tables that record 
the number of homes approved and can be sorted by year of 
approval 

21 What are your views on the right approach to applying Housing 
Delivery Test consequences pending the 2022 results? 

Apply from the publication of the 2023 HDT. 

22 Do you agree that the government should revise national planning 
policy to attach more weight to Social Rent in planning policies and decisions? 
If yes, do you have any specific suggestions on the best mechanisms for doing 
this? 

Yes. This is the most affordable type of social rented housing. We 
have been lucky enough to be one of the areas where Homes 
England would support Registered Providers to develop and deliver 
new social rented properties. In relation to planning policies we 
could seek social rented properties instead of affordable rented 
properties as the S 106 planning contribution, however this would 
likely impact on the viability of market schemes so we may have to 
accept a reduced planning contribution as developers would get 
less for social rented properties from RP’s than they do for 
affordable rented properties. 
This would also need to be discussed with RP’s to assess their 
appetite for the social rented S106 contributions. It is currently 
proving problematic finding RP’s that are able to acquire S106 

Page 24



planning contributions due to the often small number of properties 
involved. They are focussing on their own all affordable housing 
schemes as this provides them with the numbers they need. 

23 Do you agree that we should amend existing paragraph 62 of the 
Framework to support the supply of specialist older people’s housing? 

Yes.  We could support more lifetime homes through planning 
policy but this will also impact viability. The development of 
specialist OP housing needs supporting, however it needs finance 
to make the schemes viable as they are expensive. 

24 Do you have views on the effectiveness of the existing small sites 
policy in the National Planning Policy Framework (set out in paragraph 69 of 
the existing Framework)? 

Small scale builds play an important role in delivering housing, and 
there is the potential to incentivise these builds through alterations 
to policy. Extra emphasis should be placed on smaller scale projects 
to provide specialist housing. Policy can reiterate that these 
applications should be looked upon favourably by the planning 
authority, unless the development significantly contradicts an 
existing policy.  

25 How, if at all, do you think the policy could be strengthened to 
encourage greater use of small sites, especially those that will deliver high 
levels of affordable housing? 

It should be stated that small scale developments that focus on 
affordable or specialist housing are looked upon favourably by the 
planning authority, unless there is significant departure from 
existing policy. 

26 Should the definition of “affordable housing for rent” in the 
Framework glossary be amended to make it easier for organisations that are 
not Registered Providers – in particular, community-led developers and 
Almshouses – to develop new affordable homes? 

Yes. The definition should be amended. There is a significant need 
for affordable housing for rent and widening the number of 
potential providers will help to meet these needs. However, there 
may be a need for measures to avoid unscrupulous development. 

27 Are there any changes that could be made to exception site policy 
that would make it easier for community groups to bring forward affordable 
housing? 

The current policy is acceptable. 
 

28 Is there anything else that you think would help community groups in 
delivering affordable housing on exception sites? 

Community groups should be given priority on exception sites for 
the development of affordable homes. Community groups should 
be offered the land before other prospective developers in order to 
ensure the best quality development for the community is in place. 
If there are two applications for development on an exception site, 
the priority should be given to community groups as long as the 
application is for affordable homes. 

Page 25



29 Is there anything else national planning policy could do to support 
community-led developments? 

Encourage discussion and a relationship between community 
groups and Local Planning Authorities in order to ensure their 
development conforms with local development policy. Fostering 
good relations will increase community trust in the planning 
authority and will increase engagement when creating local 
planning policy. 

30 Do you agree in principle that an applicant’s past behaviour should be 
taken into account into decision making? 

Yes, for legitimate planning issues that have involved the 
Enforcement team. None compliance with conditions, carrying out 
development without the necessary planning permission, felling of 
trees, clearing Bio diversity Net gain evidence.  
Developers with a proven track record of delivering high quality 
housing should be looked at more favourably. 

31 Of the two options above, what would be the most effective 
mechanism? Are there any alternative mechanisms? 

On the face of it Option 2 would be the most effective because the 
application is not accepted and so should encourage good 
behaviour. However imposing this maybe considered harsh and 
challengeable in court, either against the Council, or the 
Government through this adoption process. It raises the question 
who is to blame? Is it the developer’s modus operandi or was it the 
site manager? A different site manager may not have tarnished the 
developer’s image. For a Limited Co who do you blame? 
An alternative approach would be for Breach of Condition Notices 
to carry a fixed fine in the way of a fixed penalty and ongoing daily 
fine until the ‘breach’ has been remedied. Any retrospective 
planning application that is required to ‘authorise’ development 
should attract double fee. The fines and fees accrued should be 
retained by the Council and ring-fenced for future monitoring of 
developments which would encourage this area of planning 
enforcement to be better prioritised by Councils. 

32 Do you agree that the 3 build out policy measures that we propose to 
introduce through policy will help incentivise developers to build out more 
quickly? Do you have any comments on the design of these policy measures? 

Naming and shaming may help encourage completion rates. The 
success of the interplay between a) and c) will depend on  what 
‘maybe refused in certain circumstances’ means. 

Page 26



The potential for developers to rush the building process and 
deliver low quality development as a result of increased pressures 
to develop quickly may be tempered by Qu30. 

33 Do you agree with making changes to emphasise the role of beauty 
and placemaking in strategic policies and to further encourage well-designed 
and beautiful development? 

Yes, focusing on having attractive yet practical development is key 
for maintaining and enhancing the sense of place of a location. 
However, there is the potential for this policy change to add an 
additional layer of subjectiveness to the planning process. While 
the design codes do help, they do not fully eliminate subjectiveness 
from the process. 
The issue is; what is beautiful, as opinions will differ. 

34 Do you agree to the proposed changes to the title of Chapter 12, 
existing paragraphs 84a and 124c to include the word ‘beautiful’ when 
referring to ‘well-designed places’, to further encourage well-designed and 
beautiful development? 

84/86a includes beautiful that is not a tracked change, This appears 
to be 124/126e. 
The addition of the word beautiful may reduce the potential for 
development that is practical and attractive but not beautiful. The 
meaning of beautiful is somewhat subjective and has a relatively 
small scope (a development can be attractive and visually 
appealing without being beautiful).  
The additional emphasis on creating good looking development is 
greatly appreciated and needed, but the word beautiful is 
potentially a misstep.  

35 Do you agree greater visual clarity on design requirements set out in 
planning conditions should be encouraged to support effective enforcement 
action? 

We condition planning permissions to be carried out in accordance 
with the approved plans that results in modifications requiring a 
S73a application. The issue is being able to require better designs / 
clearer drawings to show the intended development so that 
enforcement is based on clearer information. Also being mindful 
that these conditions still need to be precise and understandable.  

36 Do you agree that a specific reference to mansard roofs in relation to 
upward extensions in Chapter 11, paragraph 122e of the existing framework 
is helpful in encouraging LPAs to consider these as a means of increasing 
densification/creation of new homes? If no, how else might we achieve this 
objective? 

The issue in the context of good design / beauty is the first upwards 
extension in a terrace will look awful because it is the first. The 
other issue that is not mentioned is the impact on foundations and 
how upgrading those affects neighbours. It is doubtful this 
approach would happen in low value areas where overcrowding 
may be highest. Concern whether this is over prescriptive for a 
national planning document where a Mansard Roof is a very 

Page 27



specific type of design style that may not be appropriate outside of 
dense, urban areas.  

37 How do you think national policy on small scale nature interventions 
could be strengthened? For example, in relation to the use of artificial grass 
by developers in new development? 

BNG Policy should make the incorporation of swift/bee bricks and 
bat/ bird boxes commonplace in developments. They are 
reasonably cheap products so that being mandatory for all 
developments would not be too costly and may compliment other 
BNG measures. Artificial grass in new development has no 
ecological benefit and undermines BNG and so may be used less as 
a result. Banning it in existing developments may result in other 
unhelpful surfaces being used: tarmac, concrete, decking.   

38 Do you agree that this is the right approach making sure that the food 
production value of high value farm land is adequately weighted in the 
planning process, in addition to current references in the Framework on best 
most versatile agricultural land? 

Yes. However, councils where nearly all agricultural land is grade 1, 
2, 3a have a difficult decision since 3a may not be against a 
settlement where new allocations are sensible.  
The issue has more local relevance for solar schemes. Although, 
land may benefit from a 30+ year fallow period the issue with solar 
is identifying agricultural practices that can co-exist with solar. 
Sheep grazing is common but might be free range chickens or fruit 
growing on bushes, cordon apple trees, subject to soil conditions. 
However, the farmer may not have these skills as the land was 
previously cultivated with large machinery for wheat, oil seed, 
potatoes, brassicas etc. The solution will require market 
encouragement for alternative crops so that farmers may rent their 
land to a solar electric generating company and a grower who has 
appropriate husbandry or horticultural skills. The solar scheme will 
need to be suitably designed for other crops to co-exist and this 
might be encouraged through government energy and agricultural 
policy. 

39 What method or measure could provide a proportionate and 
effective means of undertaking a carbon impact assessment that would 
incorporate all measurable carbon demand created from plan-making and 
planning decisions? 

Carbon emissions are already measured nationally for domestic, 
industrial, land use change and transport for climate change 
purposes. Can data from the industrial data identify emissions 
attributable to cement manufacture, brick/block making, steel that 
is used in construction? Can the emissions for transporting these 
products and the on site workforce travelling to work be identified 

Page 28



or approximated from the transport data? The domestic data 
identifies the emissions from the housing stock. Building 
Regulations will reduce emissions so can a figure be derived from 
this. As part of the BNG work is there a carbon sequestration 
metric? 

40 Do you have any views on how planning policy could support climate 
change adaptation further, specifically through the use of nature-based 
solutions that provide multi-functional benefits? 

The NPPF and NPG need to draw the building design, urban design, 
flood risk and its amelioration, landscaping, bio diversity net gains 
and nature based solutions together in a narrative that makes it 
clear the approach government is requiring development to take as 
its contribution to adapting to and ameliorating climate change as 
well as contributing to the Governments carbon reduction targets. 
They all interrelate and will assist in urban cooling, water 
management, habitat creation with consequent bio diversity 
improvements and open space that will also contribute to heath 
and well – being.  
This will underline to developers or local planning authorities that 
previous approaches to development must change.  

41 Do you agree with the changes proposed to Paragraph 155 of the 
existing National Planning Policy Framework? 

Yes. Extending the use of existing wind farm sites is sensible 

42 Do you agree with the changes proposed to Paragraph 158 of the 
existing National Planning Policy Framework? 

Yes. Extending the use of existing wind farm sites is sensible 

43 Do you agree with the changes proposed to footnote 54 of the 
existing National Planning Policy Framework? Do you have any views on 
specific wording for new footnote 62? 

The word “overwhelming” should be added to both footnotes. This 
will quantify community support and ensure that the community is 
sufficiently satisfied with the proposal. Otherwise, the views of a 
minority may overwhelm that of the majority.  
Potentially include a reference to local groups in footnote 62. This 
will help ensure institutions such as wildlife/ nature groups are also 
fully satisfied. 

44 Do you agree with our proposed Paragraph 161 in the National 
Planning Policy Framework to give significant weight to proposals which allow 
the adaptation of existing buildings to improve their energy performance? 

Yes. Additional support is needed to help ensure residences/ 
businesses can become more energy efficient. 
 

45 Do you agree with the proposed timeline for finalising local plans, 
minerals and waste plans and spatial development strategies being prepared 

Comments: The SELP covers both the East Lindsey Local plan and 
the South East Lincolnshire Local Plan (SELP). The East Lindsey LP is 

Page 29



under the current system? If no, what alternative timeline would you 
propose? 

5 years old in July 2023. The SELP  is 5 years old in march 2024. We 
will not be able to advance either new local plan until we have 
more up to date flood risk data as we will not be able to select 
allocations for consultation. Our flood risk mapping is 12 years old. 
The EA are working on an update of their flood risk mapping at this 
time and we are told it will be at least a year until it delivers 
outputs that could be useful to inform an SFRA that we could then 
use for selecting suitable sites for allocations. 
 
The East Lindsey Local Plan is likely to hit the deadline. However 
the SELP is unlikely to meet the 30 June 2025 deadline and will 
have to employ the new local plan process. However, because our 
plan is 5 years old before the new system comes into being it will 
not be considered ‘up to date’ and we will be open to speculative 
development based on the tilted balance and will have to depend 
on a 5 year supply figures. This would not be the case if our plan 
was 5 years old 9 -12 months later. Being open to speculative 
development when the SFRA is out of date is not sensible given the 
impact a flood event could have. We request the protection against 
speculative development is amended to include our situation. 

46 Do you agree with the proposed transitional arrangements for plans 
under the future system? If no, what alternative arrangements would you 
propose? 

Yes, except the ‘out of date’ impact on local plans that are 5 years 
old before the new local plan system comes into being. 
 

47 Do you agree with the proposed timeline for preparing 
neighbourhood plans under the future system? If no, what alternative 
timeline would you propose? 

Yes. The scope seems appropriate.  
 

48 Do you agree with the proposed transitional arrangements for 
supplementary planning documents? If no, what alternative arrangements 
would you propose? 

Yes. The scope seems appropriate.  
 
 

49 Do you agree with the suggested scope and principles for guiding 
National Development Management Policies? 

The NPPF requires development to be sustainable and climate 
change to be addressed. These objectives should frame what 
national development policies are provided so there is a national 

Page 30



thread from policy to implementation. Scope 2 seems to cover this 
and the others are also appropriate. The principles make sense.  

50 What other principles, if any, do you believe should inform the scope 
of National Development Management Policies? 

The current principles are sufficient. 
 

51 Do you agree that selective additions should be considered for 
proposals to complement existing national policies for guiding decisions? 

Yes. This would be welcome as it removes the need for each local 
planning authority in England writing their own version of a policy 
topic.  

52 Are there other issues which apply across all or most of England that 
you think should be considered as possible options for National Development 
Management Policies? 

The topic list includes allotments. The GI Framework has recently 
been launched so there may be policies required to implement this. 
A policy limiting isolated homes would improve clarity for 
developers and cement that development in unsuitable locations is 
not acceptable. Many local policies and the NPPF mention these 
isolated developments and limit them, but a National Development 
Management Policy would provide a useful baseline to ward off 
inappropriate development, which also links to sustainability and 
climate change. 
A policy to ensure all new housing developments must be 
accessible by sustainable transport. This should be extended to 
rural developments as well as the urban developments mentioned 
in the text prior to this question. This should link to a national plan 
to improve bus and rail networks, including electrification. 

53 What, if any, planning policies do you think could be included in a 
new framework to help achieve the 12 levelling up missions in the Levelling 
Up White Paper? 

Mission 7 and 8 are Health and Well-being. Access to good quality 
open space helps these two missions as somewhere to exercise and 
also by achieving access to nature that can help mental health and 
well-being. Policies need to protect and expand existing provision, 
which links the GI framework referred to in Qu52 and sustainable 
development in Qu49. 
Mission 9, 10 and 11 are touched on by design and existing first 
home policies.  
 
R & D is within Class E, so if these are to be encouraged they need 
to be protected from being changed to other class E uses, else 
there will be more retail on employment allocations. 

Page 31



54 How do you think that the framework could better support 
development that will drive economic growth and productivity in every part 
of the country, in support of the Levelling Up agenda? 

The NPPF could greatly expand section 6 and 7 to further support 
sustainable economic development. However, this also depends on 
good transport links that in rural areas are challenged by low 
density and greater distances. Planning applications can already 
seek S106 contributions for improvements that are warranted by 
the development’s impact. Beyond this and to achieve better, 
cheap, low emission transport requires a government funded 
programme to drive innovations. 

55 Do you think that the government could go further in national policy, 
to increase development on brownfield land within city and town centres, 
with a view to facilitating gentle densification of our urban cores? 

Yes. The NPPF should insert further policies that emphasise and 
give great weight to development on brownfield sites. Emphasis 
should also be placed on developments that utilise these sites to 
their fullest, whether through gentle densification of developments 
or reuse/ preserving historic sites.  
Increased sustainability can be achieved by encouraging these 
denser sites to incorporate services into their development. Weight 
can be given through design codes and NPPF alterations to 
encourage new developments to incorporate shops and offices into 
new housing developments. In urban areas this would be especially 
effective. It is important these developments are incorporated into 
the wider area, rather than just creating closed ecosystems.  
 

56 Do you think that the government should bring forward proposals to 
update the framework as part of next year’s wider review to place more 
emphasis on making sure that women, girls and other vulnerable groups in 
society feel safe in our public spaces, including for example policies on 
lighting/street lighting? 

Yes. This is part of the social objective of sustainable development. 

57 Are there any specific approaches or examples of best practice which 
you think we should consider to improve the way that national planning 
policy is presented and accessed? 

Text and web access will be influenced by accessibility standards 
outside planning.  

58 We continue to keep the impacts of these proposals under review 
and would be grateful for your comments on any potential impacts that might 
arise under the Public Sector Equality Duty as a result of the proposals in this 
document. 

No Comments 

Page 32



 

 

LP under existing 
system 

Spring ‘23  

NPPF changes 
made 

Late ‘24 

New local plan 
system 
introduced 

30 June ‘25 

Deadline to 
submit new LP for 
examination. 
(Need DtC) 

31 Dec ‘26 

Deadline for new 
LP to be adopted 

LP under new 
system 

Spring ‘23  

NPPF changes 
made 

Late ‘24 

SELLP over 5 yrs 
old at this time. 
We will HAVE to 
commence a new 
plan straight 
away. Our plan 
will NOT be 
considered ‘up to 
date’. If it was 5 
yrs old in mar 25 
it would have 
been. We will 
therefore be 
open to 
speculative 
development and 
therefore 5YLS 
important. 

30 June ‘25 

If can’t meet this 
date, will prepare 
under new 
system which will 
change DtC rules.  

Early / mid ’27. 

Deadline for new 
LP to be adopted   

Have 30 months 
to adopt new 
plan. Sanctions 
not specified.  

It is assumed they 
will be via the 
tilted balance. 

 

Page 33



T
his page is left intentionally blank

Page 34


	Agenda
	3 Minutes:
	4 Actions:
	5 East Lindsey Local Plan Settlement Pattern:
	6 DRAFT reply to the NPPF consultation 2023:

